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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) _:. SEE
COUNTYOF B R
CHAMPAIGN g

S '.B'E'FORIE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS® COMPENSATION COMMISSION

e .Robert A Taibott
o Petltzoner

Cwe o NOIISWO 37649
o owee s

o Clty ofSprmgﬁeld SR S

Respondent._'_'_-_-:.'-.'. e o

ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19( ﬂ

Th1s matter comes before the Commrssron on Pe’szhoner s motaon to correct a clerlcal error R

n the Dee1sron and Oplmon on Revrew of the Commlsswn ﬁled July 30 2020 Aﬁer rev;ewmg _

:-the Decns:on on Revrew the Commlsswn reealls the Decrslon for the purposes of correctmg the -
: '_c]encal error : : : - : _

_ IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Demsmn dated Juiy
. '_3(} 2020 18 hereby vacated and recaIIed pursuant to Sectron 19(ﬂ for a cler1eal error contarned
S therem ' . TR . . .

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Decrsion Shail
- be 1ssued 31multaneously wzth th1s Order

DATED: SEP g i 2[}20 W o{" ,do»w..,J

DLS/m . | _ DeborahL Szmpson :
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) D Affirm and adopt (no changes) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Pund (§4(d))
o : ) SS D Afﬁrm Wlth changes _ D Rate Ad}ustment Fund (58(2)) '
' COUNTY OF CHAMP AIGN ) . D Reverse ' Second lnjury Fund (§8(e)l 8)
' - - L D PTD/Fatal demed
: X} _M_odify: "I_‘TD PR ]E None of the above
' BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COM_PEN_S_ATION CO_MM_I_SS_I(_)N N
* ROBERT TALBOTT,
- 'Petit'ionef, h
Cvs. N0 15WC3T69
_ CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

Respondent

CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

_ T 1mely Petltlon for Revzew havmg been ﬁled by Respondent hereln and notice glven to all

" parnes ‘the Commission, after cons1dermg theissues of temporary total d:sabllzty, the benefit rates,

~and permanent part1al d1sab1hty, and being advised of the facts and. law, modifies the Decision of
the Arb1trator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decision of the Arbltrator -
'whlch is attaohed hereto and made a part thereof -

AN Fmdmgs ofFact

: Petmoner was a captam on Respondent S ﬁre department On Apnl ll 2015 Pet1t1oner
responded to an emergency medical call involving a dog attack on a child. ‘When Petxtloner arrived
on the scene, Te thought the child had already passed away due to her general appearance and the
seventy of her wounds. Petitioner testlﬁed that the child had been scalped and had bite marks on
her arms, legs, thoracic cavxty, chest, and scalp Petitioner’s crew prov1ded aotwe treatment to the
child before an ambulance amved two mmutes later, :

Petittoner testified that as hzs crew traveled back to the station, he was upset sad and mad
all at once. He then put his crew out of service, because he believed that they could not go out on
another call that day. Although Petitioner thereafter finished his shift, he indicated that he felt sad
and withdrawn. He testified that after his shift, he crawled into hzs hed at home and cried for five
hours, whlch he had never done before.

: -Thereafter, on August 27, 2015, Petitioner was baCl{ at work responding. to a house fire
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"when he coiIapsed in the front yard He was taken by ambulance to Memorlai Medlcal Center and

- treated for an' anxrety attack. Petitioner testrﬁed that as he was berng cared for by the paramedrcs

'-he was erymg, nervous shakmg, and unaware of what was gomg o1.

_ ' Between the Aprrl and August 1n01dents Petittoner had srmrlar eplsodes of unexpiarned

aying. He testlﬁed that he was constantiy on edge and nervous ‘had extremely high emotions,

 cried over almost anythmg, had no energy, ‘and did not care. Petitioner further mdrcated that he
' was Wlthdrawn and began havmg dreams repiaymg the dog attaek call '

_ _ Petrtloner ﬁrst presented to Vlncent Flammlru a hcensed clmrcai soo1a1 worker, for therapy 3
- between the two incidents on July: 2 201 5. Mr. Flarmmm reported that since the Aprll accident,
* Petitioner ‘had flashbacks, ni ghtrnares and other intrusive thoughts of both the dog attack: call and
- several other calls from his career that had not prev;ousiy interfered with his life.; Petitioner’s other
~ symptoms. included a‘onorrnai fears, anxiousness, .concentration probierns depressed tood, guilt,

' _ _hopelessness 1solation pamc attacks sieep 1ssues, somatic’ cornplarnts tearfulness, and’ feelmgs' _
~of Worthiessness Petitioner contmued to undergo therapy for PTSD w1th Mr. Flammmr through o

the hearlng date Throughout his therapy session notes, Mr. Flammml 1ndlcated that Petmoner .
_ was wresthng wrth whether or not to go back to work wrth hrs symptoms '

Whtle stdl in the early stages of hlS therapy, on July 20 2015 Pet1t1oner presented to
K Memorral Medlcal Center eomplammg of i 1nterrn1ttent chest pain and stress. A heart catherization

was performed after an abnorrnal stress test revealed 1nfenor wall myoeardlal 1schem1a ‘Petitioner

-__was dzseharged on: Juiy 22,2015 with the dlagnoses of non- cardrac chest pain, hypertensron rmld :

coronary artery: dlsease and dyshpldemla Petitloner then followed up with his primary care . |

a phys1c1an, Dr. Cara Vasoonoelles on July 29, 2015 ‘At that time, Dr. VasconceHes started
Petitioner on Prozac after ‘noting that he was emotronal cr1ed easrly, and had short term memory
loss with poor concentratton : - :

On August 5, 2015 Mr Flammlnl recommended that Petrtioner erther decrease or stop
Worklng at his second job at Butler Funeral Homes. ‘Mr. Flammini noted that Petitioner was
experiencing s1gn1ﬁcantiy mcreased anxiety at this job, even though it was a low risk activity.
Petitioner testified that he had started working at Butler Funeral Homes in February of 20{)1 but
stopped worklng there from September of 2015 to February of 2018 due to hls emotlons

On September 8 2015 Dr Vasconcelles dlagnosed Petltloner w1th PTSD anx1ety,
depressmn and sleep disturbances.” She referred him to Dr. Phrihp Pan, a psychiatrist, and
continued his medtoatlon The foilowrng day, on Septernber 9, 2015, Mr. Flammini indicated that
it did not make sense for Petitioner to return to work for Respondent considering his anxiety
regardlng hls ablhty to perform during a crisis and the risk of his PTSD syrnptorns returning.

When Petitioner thereaﬁer presented to Dr Pan on September 15, 2015, he was started on
prazosin for his sleeping problems. Petitioner continued to regularly treat Wrth Dr. Pan through
August 15, 2017, at which time Dr. Pan told Petitioner to follow up with Dr. Vasconcelles since
he was leavmg the clinic. Througbout this perrod Dr. Pan continued and adjusted Petitioner’s
medications for PTSD, nightmares, and panic attacks, At his March 3, 2016 visit, Petitioner told
Dr. Pan that he Was work1ng on deterrnlnlng if he was ready to return to work or retire.
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On March 17 201 6 Dr Pan authored a 1etter stattng that Petltloner 'S’ PTSD dlagn()sn; was
‘a drrect result of his ﬁreﬁghter duties for Respondent Dr. Pan recommended that Petitioner not
: _'retum to active duty as‘a ﬁreﬁghter given his lingering i issues with PTSD and the likelihood of a
e -relapse Thereafter, on Aprd 28, 2016 Dr Pan ﬁlied out amedrcai form mdlcatmg that Pet1troner -
- was off Work 1ndeﬁmtely ' . : SR R :

At Respondent’s request Pet;tloner then presented for & §12 neuropsyehologleal |

o exammatron with Dr. Ronaid Ganellen on November 28,201 6 Dr. Ganellen oprned that Petitioner :

“had: developed PTSD in’ response 1o the: dog attack call. ‘He further found ‘that Petitioner’s
' symptoms were consistent with a single eprsode of major. depressron of moderate severlty that had

s developed foliowrng the events of 2015. Dr. Ganellen also opined that Petrtroner was not ableto |

' '_-retum to work as a: ﬁreﬁghter, although he encouraged Petrtroner to pursue a meamngful new

_. “career. He beheved that it would be positive for Petitioner’s emotlonai state, Sense of self—worth
L and ouﬂook to. resume mvolvernent in the workforee in another ﬁeld

On January 5 201 7 Dr. Pan noted that Petrtroner would run out of hrs srck tlme 1n March

'_ and would then need to’ rnake a “decision regardmg retlrement Thereaﬁer on March 2,2017,
Petitioner informed Dr. Pan that his’ dlsabrhty benefits had not been worked out and there was -
confusron as to his active duty versus retirement. Also on March 2, 2017, Dr. Pan authored a

report statmg that Petitioner. had been unablé to work since September 15 2015 and would remaln' .
¥ _unable to’ return to. full duty as a ﬁreﬁghter or rn emergency medreal servrces mdeﬁmteiy '

o On May 17 2017 Petmoner presented for another §12 exammatmn wrth Dr Terry Krlhan' . :
- _at the request of the: Spnngﬁeld Flreﬁghters Pension Fund. in response to Petitioner’s apphcatzon -

~ for a line of duty dlsablhty pensron Dr. Killian Oprned that Petrtloner s PTSD. symptoms were

-;eaused by his repetitive exposure:to work traima over. the years. He opmed that Petitioner had -
been totaily disabled from his ﬁreﬁghter posrtlon since Septernber of 201 5as aresult of hlS PTSD -

~Dr.-Killian 1nd1cated that retumrng to ﬁreﬁghtrng Work ‘would be. mcreasmgly unhkely as‘time :
' 'progressed and as such, Petitioner should be consrdered permanently drsabled from hrs ﬁreﬁ ghter '
Z .posmon as con51stent w1th Dr Pan 8 opmron : SRR '

On June 3() 2017 Petltloner was awarded a llne of duty dlsablhty pensron n the amount :

~of $5 285.56 per month by the Sprmgﬁeld Firefighters Pension Board.  The Board’ Frnai

_ Admmrstratlve Decision stated ‘that Petitioner had been examined by three doctors Dr. Ganetlen
‘Dr.-Pan, -and Dr. Killian, who had all agreed that Petrtloner was dlsabled and unable 1o return to
~ service in the ﬁre department : : :

_ _ On Juiy 31 2017 Ehzabeth Skyles a certlﬁed rehahlhtatlon counselor authored a
vocational report followrng her i 1n~person assessment of Petitioner on May 24 2017. Ms ‘Skyles
opined that there were employment positions available within Petitioner’s labor market area that
fit his current profile and could provide him with substantial gainful employrnent On August 23,
2017, Ms. Skyles performed a labor market sutvey that identified ten appropriate alternatwe
posrtrons wrthln Petltioner s labor market area with a yearly pay range of $35,000 to $l 10, 000

Respondent thereafter wrote a letter to Petrtloner on November 15 2017 enclosmg a ]Ob |
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_descnptron for a posmon that Respondent was plalmmg to' offer On November 21 2017 -
- Petitioner’s counsel responded that Petitioner could not ‘accept the JOb because domg so ‘would

cause Petrtroner to lose his dzsablhty pension.. He explalned that any posmon wrthln the fire

_ _'department also requ1red one to be ready to respond to emergency - calls in full ‘turnout gear ‘As

“such, Petitioner’s: counsel stated that Petitioner would be: performmg the duties of a full- tlme'

= ﬁreﬁghter and wouid thus lose h}S dlsablhty pensmn beneﬁts He further expressed concern that"' o

: '_the posrtlon would reqmre Petmoner to part1c1pate in emergeney eaHs and ﬁre suppressron dutres cl _' L

3 _ On December 13 2017 Respondent s Human Resources Drrector er Kurzm wrote a:- B _: o
o _-1etter 1o Petrtroner S counsel that attached a Job deseﬂptlon and offer for a fire mspeetor/pubhc R

“educator position. This was the same job description that had been prevrously sent to: Petrtroner:_:- |
by Respondent’s eounsel “Mr. Kurzm wrote that thls posrtron did not require’ Petitioner to- respond

‘to-emergency ealls, partrerpate n’ ﬁre suppression, or perform’ ﬁreﬁghter duties. In. the attaehed_', el

- :' 3 job deserlptlon it stated that the appheant shouid sustam the rank of eaptam or. battalron chlef

On December 19 2()17 the Presrdent of the Sprmgﬁeld Ftreﬁghters Local 37 Umon Gary' '-
: Seif ﬁied 4 grievance allegmg that the creation of this'new. posmon had Vloiated the Collective

_ Bargammg Agreement He sought o n‘nmedrately ‘bargain over - the posrtzon and . Wanted_ :
_'-'_Respondent to file a new unit: clarification apphcatlon with the Tllinois Labor Relatrons Board. AL
-~ the hearmg, Mr, Self testrﬁed that the job-description was’ for a posrtlon that had never: been on the
L fire department. during his tenure. Mr, Self testified: that at the time of the hearmg, the posrtron' S
" remained unfilled; and as far as he knew; no- longer existed.  Mr. Self further testified that the -

| _feffered pos1t10n was _in Division' Bie and -those jobs were not generatly related to ﬁreﬁghtmg o

" Nevertheless, he recailed two.instances where 1nd1v1dua1s from D1v1szon II had been called mto: g JOE

o actron and mvolved in ﬁreﬁghtmg aetw1t1es

Af’ter the grrevanee was ﬁled on January 12 201 8, Respondent wrote a Ietter to Petltloner' o

o Statmg that it was clear that Pet1t1oner did not intend to accept the job offer. Respondent mdwated o
- that it was' therefore termmatmg Petrtroner 'S temporary total drsabthty beneﬁts wrth no further o
_' checks 1ssued after J anuary 6 2018 : : -

On January 22 2018 Stephanre Barton Re5pondent s labor relatrons manager, sent an e- -
mali 0 Mr. Self statmg that although she. dlsagreed with the grievance, ‘the issue was now moot as
the position was no longer being ﬁlied Ms. Barton testrﬁed at the, hearmg that. once Petrtroner :

- '-refused the j()b offer, Respondent took the stanee that they were no longer ﬁlhng the pos1t1on and’

it - was managément’s right to fill or niot. ﬁll it. ‘Ms. Barton testified that although she was not -
'dlreetly involved in the decision to ¢reate the pos.1tron it was her understandmg that Respondent'
had created it to specrﬁealiy aecomrnodate Petltroner She opmed that it was purely 4 management
rrght to create such posrtrons and drsagreed w1th the Union’s p031t10n that 1t was. colleetrve
'bargammg work. : : : :

J eph Bassett Respondent 8 deputy d1v1sron chtef of operattons also testlﬁed at the hearmg
regardmg the job offer. Mr. Bassett testified that with the offered posmon Petitioner would not
‘be exposed to any emergency situations and would mstead be performrng fire inspections, which
- were separate from fire investigations. ‘Nevertheless, Mr: Bassett testified that in 2011, the acting
mayor moved three mspectors out of worklng in ﬁre safety and placed them ’oack mto operatrons
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B He explamed that a grlevance was ﬁled but 1t dzd not go to arbltratron asa new mayor was elected o =

-who reinstated those three p051t10ns back mto fire: safety ‘Mr. Bassett testified that there had also
-been an’ incident where a power plant exploded and. Respondent contacted several fire mspeetors
to have them come to the ﬁrehouse to unlock it, use radlos to assmt volunteers and nde on rrgs

o Petxttoner eventualiy returned to work at hls second _]Ob Wkth Butler Fuaerai Homes on

February 18, 2018 after obtarnlng ciearance from Mr. Flammini, Thereafter, on Aprrl 8,2018, Dr.

- Vasconcelles reported that Petltloner had been offered a desk 3ob but due to its requlrements he '
g could not take that posrtton ' e ERRERR : - .

- At the request of Petrtroner s eounsel Dr Vasconcelles then authored a report on August :

: _'1 2018 mdlcatlng that Petitionet’s permanent dtsablhty from his fireman’s jOb due to his PTSD.
_symptoms also prevented: him’ from taking a desk job with the ﬁre department Dr. Vasconeelles_ -

‘indicated that Petrttoner ‘was under good. control as- long as he was not exposed. to ‘any triggers,

‘which lnelude any. activities that reminded him of his ﬁreman _}Ob Nevertheless she stated that = .'

“she was not equlpped as a primary care: physu:lan to render decuuons on the _]Ob descrlptlons she o

. was asked to rev1ew and suggested that Dr Pan welgh in, o

On August 2 2018 Dr Pan wrote a letter to Petmoner s counsel 1ndlcat1ng that he no
longer worked for’ Memoned Physrelan Serv1ces and had not treated Petitioner since’ August 185,

2017 Nevertheless Dr. Pan opmed that it would not be prudent for Petitioner to accept the fire | i
' ._mspectorl publtc educator’ posrtton because ’oemg on’ the scene and 1nvest1gat1ng the aﬁermath of

o fires would likely still trlgger his PTSD However he: ant1c1pated that Petztloner wou]d be able to '
' 'perform any of the other posrtrons 11sted 1n the Ia‘oor market survey R

On September 11 2018 Petrtroner was sent an e~ma11 from Therese O Bnen the aeeount _
coordmator of IPPFA ’oeneﬁts Ms O’Brien wrote that she ‘was unable to sign off on Petlttoner 'S
- direct rollover request ‘because he needed to be ofﬁetally separated from service to do so. “Ms.
- O’Brien explamed that when she had- reached out to Springfield to confirm his termination date,
_ 'she was told that Petztroner was nezther retlred nor ofﬁmally tenmnated from his posrtron yet '

Petltroner testtﬁed that he d1d not return to work for Respondent in any capa(:tty aﬁer the -

' August 27,2015 incident. However, he testlﬁed that he was not retired as of May 21, 2017 .and

still conszdered htmseif to be Respondent s employee at the time of the heanng Petltloner testified

that he based that on Respondent s refusal to give him his deferred compensation money because

he was not a separated employee Petitioner testified that aithoagh he felt like a separated

employee after his disability pension was approved he was not separated according to the e~ma11
that he had recelved from Respondent '

Petltloner further testrﬁed that when Respondent prevrously offered him temporary light
duty, Dr. Pan still recommended that he not be anywhere around.the firehouse. He testified that
Dr. Pan did not feel that the firchouse triggers of constantly hearing sirens, seeing the rigs go out,
and listing to the calls would be beneficial to Petitioner. Petitioner did not know exactly when he
turned down the hght duty position, but he guessed that it was in the fall of 2015 or spring of 2016.
He testified that he did not think he could have done light duty at that time, because bemg at the
ﬁrehouse would have aggravated his stress and anxxety
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. Petmoner further testtﬁed that in add1t1on to his ourrent posmon at Butler Funeral Homes
he and hrs wife had a secondhand antique business with a small booth in the Sangamon Antrque :
Mall that buys and sells glassware Petltloner still takes fluoxetine and prazosin every day as well
as Xanax as needed for his anxiety. He testified that prior to Aprzl 11, 2015, he had not requlred
any Iong or short«term psychologlcal or psych:atrlc eare . . AR

Petltloner S Wlfe, Jane Taibott also testiﬁed that she notlced a ehenge m her husband after -
- the Aprﬂ 11, 2015 incident.  Mrs. Taibott testiﬁed that after the accident, Pet1t1oner hiad trouble
- sleeping;- became withdrawn, and was easﬂy agrtated She explamed that before the accrdent they 0
talked about their future plans and what it would be like to retire, but now they just live one day at

a tnne They also no. 1onger attend a lot of ﬁmctlons because Pet1t10ner eannot bein targe groups S

Followmg the hearmg on September 25 2018 the Dec1sron of the Arbrtrator awarded |

Petitroner 50% 1oss of use of man as a whole as well as temporary total dlsabrhty benefits’ from
- -January 6,2018 to' ‘February 11, 201 8. The Decision of the Arbitrator. further ‘gave Respondent a
: 'oredlt for the temporary totai dlsabrhty beneﬁts that had been pard for the awarded time penod

' II Concluswns ofLaw :

Followmg a careﬁ.tl review of the ent1re record the Commrssmn modlﬁes the Decrsron of
- :-the Arbltrator to clarify that Respondent is not entitled to any temporary total dlsabﬁrty credrt for
L -payments made to Petltroner through hls hne of duty drsabrlrty pensmn SRR

Petltzoner was unammously determmed to be medicaliy unable to return to Work as’ a
ﬁreﬁghter by Dr. Ganellen, Dr. Pan, and Dr. Kﬂhan He was thus awarded a line of duty d;sabrhty
pension on June 30, 2017 as’his PTSD symptoms prevented him from returmng to employment
with Respondent Dueto his anxiety, Petrtroner also stopped Workrng at his second JOb with Butler
Funeral “Homes . from “September of 2015 untll ‘February 18, 2018 upon *Mr. Fiammrm S
_recommendatron As the record shows that Petitioner was kept off work by several medrcal
. professionals for the claimed temporary total drsabﬂlty penod of January 6, 2018 to February 11

'-_'201 8 the Comrrussron at'ﬁrms the Arbrtrator s award of temporary total dlsabrlzty beneﬁts -

The Comxmsswn further ﬁnds that there was 1o evrdence in the record to show that
Pet1troner retired frorn employment with Respondent and Voluntarﬂy removed himself from the
workforce. Although Petitioner expressed concerns as to whether he should retire “to Mr.
Flammini, there was no mdrcatlon that he began a formal retrrement process. :

Addmona]ly, the Commlssron ﬁnds that Petmoner s decrslon to deellne Respondent’s job
offer does not affect his entitlement to temporary total dtsabrhty benefits, because none of his
doctors had determined that Petitioner would be medically able to pursue this position. Instead,
Dr. Pan opined that it would not be prudent for Petitioner to accept the fire inspectot/ public
educator position, because being on the scene to investigate the aftermath of fires would likely
trigger his PTSD. Although such Division II positions were not generally involved in firefighting
activities, Mr. Bassett and Mr. Self both discussed occasions when employees in Division Il had
been put back on rigs and 1nvolved in ﬁreﬁghtmg duties. Thus, the offered position does not
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. o iconstltute an- adequate aeeommodatmn as Pettttoner s treatment records show that anythmg S -
L re]ated to bemg a ﬁreﬁghter eould mduee hrs PTSD symptoms :

However although the Commrssmn agrees w1th the awarded penod of temporary totai
: -_drsabrllty heneﬁts it finds that Respondent is not: entttled toa eredlt for the payments P etitioner
_ received through his line of: duty d1sa‘o111ty pension. that commenced on June 30,2017, 'In

- '_eontemplatmg the award of ﬁreﬁghters d1sab1hty pensrons 40 ILCS 5/4 114 2(a) states S

o “Whenever a person is entltled to a drsab1hty ot survivor’s beneﬁt under_ (RN
S ;th1s Artlcle and ‘to beneﬁts under the ‘Workers’: Compensatlon Aet [820 R
o ILCS: 305/1 et seq] or the Workers Occupattonal Diseases: Act [820 .
_'ILCS 310/1 et seq.] for the same 1njury or disease, the benefits payable . =
‘under this Article shall be reduced by an amount. computed inaccordance .
'w1th subsectlon (b) of thls Seetlon There: shall be o reduetron however,
s for any of the followmg payments for. medreal surgrcal and hospltal R
services, non-medical remedial care and treatment rendered in dccordance -
: 'wrth a rellglous method of healmg reeognlzed by the laws of this State
L _and for- artrﬁeral applranees payments made for scheduled losses for the'_ -
.loss ofor: permanent and’ complete or permanent and part1a1 loss of the use S0
: ‘of any bodily member or the body taken asa Whole under subdwrslon (dy2- -
of su’osectlon (e) of Section 8 of the Workers Compensatlon Act 820
o ILCS 305/8] or Section 7 of the Workers” OCCupatlonal Diseases ACt[820. . -0
CILCSe 310/7} payments made for statutorlly prescrlbed Josses under i
SERR snbdl\nsron (d)2 of: Seetlon 8 of the Workers’ Compensation Act [820 o
S __-'ILCS 305/8] or Seetton 7of the Workers Oocupatronal Diseases Act [820 L
ILCS 310/7]; . and that portron of the payments which is utrlrzed to pay -
-'attomeys fees and the costs of - securing’ ‘the: workers compensatron )
~benefits under either the Workers’ Compensation Act[820TLCS 305/1 et :
o .'seq] or Workers’ Oceupatronal Dtseases Act {820 iLCS 310/ 1 et seq } S
'-__'401LCSSf41142(a) R _ SRS Sl

: The Cemmlsszon ﬁnds that 4(} ILCS 5/4 l 14 2 does niot relreve Respondent of its obhgatzon
o pay temporary total dlsablllty benefits once a line of duty pension:is awarded. - As'such, the
Commission modlﬁes the Decision of the Arbitrator to clanfy that Respondent is not entitled to a

~credit toward the temporary total drsabrhty award for any. payments made by the Sprmgﬁeld o

_Fn‘eﬁghters Pensron Board The Decrslon of the Arbitrator is 0therw15e afﬁrmed and adopted

T IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMiSSION that the Deczs:on of the
Arbltrator dated July 22, 2019 is :modlﬁed as stated herem The Commtssmn otherwzse afﬁrms
and adopts the Dec131on of the Arbrtrator Lo : :

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMNHSSION that Respondent is not entitled to
a temporary total disability eredlt for any payments made by the Springfield F 1reﬁghters Pension
Board as. related to Petitioner’s lme of duty drsablhty pension. Respondent is only entitled to a
temporary tota] dlsablhty credit . for any payments it made to Petitioner under hls workers
compensatron cla1m as related to the Aprri 11,2015 work aecrdent -
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. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petltzoner
1nterest under §l9(n) of the Act 1f any ' A R

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shail have credlt :
. _for ali amounts pald 1f any, to or on behalf of Petltloner of account of sald acc1denta1 m_}ury

There is no bond for the removal of thls cause to the leCLllt Court by Respondent pursuant' Co

.: - '-:'to §19(f)(2) of the'Act. The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the: Cn'cu1t Court’
o :shali ﬁle w1th the Comrmssmn a Notlce of Intent to File for Rev1ew m Cn‘cult Court S

 DLS/met
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. '_ .Emplo} er;Respondena

: ;An Apphcat:on for Aa)ustment of C/(um was ﬁled 1n thzs matter and a Notlce 0}‘ Hearmg was mak[ed to each

. party. The matter was heard. by the Honorable Michael Nowak Arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of
-Urbana, on 9/25!' 18. After reviewing all of the ev idence; presented the Arbitrator hereby makes findmﬂs on the

d;sputed iSSUES checked beiow and attaches those fmd:nos to thlS document : :

Dlsn TFD lsst Ls

L A. Was Respondent operatmOr under and Subjtct to the illmors Workers Compensatlon or Oecupataonal

__;-'_-:Dlseases Aet‘? : : : : SR : - S :

. Was there an employee empioyez reiatlonsinp : o : :
. D[d an accndent oceur that arose out: of and in the course of Petxtioners empim ment b) Respondent"

. D What was the date ofthe acc1dent’7 e S B :

D Was tlmely not1ce ofthe accndent gtven 10 Respondent° " S

D is Petmoner 5 current cond:tlon of ill- bemc causally reiated to the m;urv"

. What were Petitioner's earmngs‘? R :

. What was Petltloner s age at the ttrne ot the accmlent" )

E] What was Petltloner 5 marltal status at the time of the acc;dent"

D Were the medlcai serv;ces that were prowded to Petltioner reasonable and necessar}" Has Respondent :
paid all approprlate charoes for alt reasonab!e and necessary med;ca! serv1ces‘? : -

. <} What temporary benef' ts are in d1spute"

: ‘JTPD < [) Maintenance -+ - X TTD

L. - | What is the nature and extent of the injury?

M. D Should penaltles or fees be imposed upon Respondent?
N. D s Respondent due any cred1t‘7

0. D Other '

'f—_'-"“.-.m o " mw

- .ﬁ
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On 4/11/15, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

FINDINGS

On this date. an erﬁpioyee-employer relationship did exist between Petitioner and Respondent.

On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.

Timely notice of this accident was given to Respondent.

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being /s causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner earned $97,269.58; the average weekly wage was $1,873.95.
On the date of accident, Petitioner was 53 years of age, married with 0 dependent children.

Petitioner has received all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent has paid all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent shall be given a credit for TTD benefits paid.

ORDER

Respondent shall pay Petitioner temporary total disability benefits of $1,248.95/week for 5 2/7 weeks,
commencing 1/6/18 through 2/11/18, as provided in Section 8(b) of the Act.

Respondent shall be given a credit for temporary total disability benefits that have been paid for the 5 2/7 weeks
~awarded herein.

Based on the factors enumerated in $8.1b of the Act, which the Arbitrator addressed in the attached findings of
fact and conclusions of law. and the record taken as a whole, Respondent shall pay Petitioner the sum of
$721.66/week for 250 weeks, as provided in Section 8(d)2 of the Act. because the injuries sustained caused
50% loss of the person as whole.

REULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this

decision, and petfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE [f the Commission reviews this award. interest at the rate set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however.
if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shali not accrue.

I

Y AL o

7M2/19

Signature of Arbitrator Date

JuL 22 2009

1CArbDec p. 2
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FI‘JDINGS OF FACTS

Robert Talbott testrﬁed that hrs date of bnth is " 6/79/61 malrm0 han 57 years old on. the date of the".-' o

'_heartno He mchcated he was hlred by Respondent S ﬁre department on 4 16/90 He was htred inas an entry level :

o _ﬁreﬁghter He next was a driver engineer- -and then'a. captam ‘He: obtamed an emeraency rnedrcal cert1ﬁcat10n L

) :;hrs first year of ernployment Petttloner descrrbed hrs jOb dutles as'a captarn to oversee and manaoe his. crew -
i -_;Thjs would mclude ﬁre suppressron actrvrtres He noted that part of the jOb wouid mvoive rescutng peopie from

v burmno structures Further there would he the responsrbthty to pe1 form eTher, 0eacy medtcai servrces if necessary B B

B }_Petrtroner also’ noted respondtnor 10 auto accldent scenes and emerfrency medrcai srtuatzons He noted the ﬂre

ot department responds to all advanced hfe support caEEs

On 4/ 1 I/ 15 he was a captam w1th the Sprmcfield Flre Department At apprommately 12 15 p m. they o
S responded 10 an, emer gency medrcai call mvolvmo an annnal assauit of a chrld They Were: ‘the. ﬁrst drspatched to’ o
._:ﬁ' the : scene. Petrtroner mdrcated he was ﬁ1 st off the r1<r and was: met b} an adult femaie at’ the ﬁront door of the _. .
e '.hoase She mdrcated rhat the mjured person was in’ the back yard and the docr mvolved was in a back. bedroom_-' R
' "-"-behmd a ciosed door Petrtroner md:cated that lns duver enomeer hrs ﬁreﬁghter and Petlttoner entered the; o

_backyard The dnver engmeer was BJ Crawford and’ the ﬁreﬁOhter was Bobby Murphy Imtrally when walkmo "

; 'out on the deck in: the backyard they drd not see any vrctrm There was another young gtrl standmg at the top of .

a hﬂl 1n the backyard Petltroner mdlcated that they proceeded in that drrectlon to where the young 1ady was -

_ '.h ad aiready passed away Thrs_ was ased upon her oenerai appearance and the wounds on her body She was not :
"' -ﬁ-movmc'and from that dlstance they couid not: see any movement in her chest Hls dmer and hlS ﬁreﬁghter Isnelt -

RO down and started to assess the rrtri and 1eahzed that she was: actuaHV strli alwe Petrtroner mdrcated the gni had : ; :

' Z:'brte marks on both arms both legs and on her chest She also had a very large lace; atron m her scalp There dzd S
not appear to be any. ongomg bleedmg The blood appeared to be all dry. The grrl drd not have any. clothes on- o
'and the clothes were found strewn.: around the backyard and apparentiy rrpped off by the dog Aﬁer a couple of _

'rnmutes the arnbuiance arrlved They moved qurckiy to, r ansport the girl to the hosprtal The ambulance crew
' : and h_lS crew dtd most of the preparatron for transport of the httie girl. Petrtronet mdrcated he was Just hoidme- :
:her head whﬂe she was loaded onto a backboard and then onto a stretcher ' : A

On the way back to the statron the Petttroner noted knots m hlS stomach and he was very upset sad and

.mad at the same tlme It was one of the worst calis Petttroner thought he had ever seen He noted that the drrver

' encrmeer showed symptoms of emotronal upset He was crymg as he was dnvmo the rig. Petltioner had the dnver

'puH over ancf stop He also put the rtg out of servrce They did go back t0 the station and he ﬁmshed the shlﬁ :
that day Durmo the remamder of the shrft he was Very sad and very w1thdrawn He spent most of the rest of

the shift ‘oy himself ina side ofﬁce Upon return to the station, he called the battahon chtef and told him what

had happened He also contacted hrs wrfe Petrtroner mdrcated his drwer encmeer d1d not ﬁmsh the day

Petrtroner noted that aﬁer he ﬁmshed his shlft foliowma the 4/ 1 % 15 mcrdent he went home and crawled
into bed and cried for five hours somethmg he had never done before. His emotrons were hrgh and he would cry
over aimost anything. ‘He had no energy and he did not care. ‘He felt hke he was just going through the motions.
He started havmg rnghtmares Wrth regard t0 hiS personal hfe he was Very w1thdrawn He drd not want to do
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anythmg, even with his farmly Prior to the 4/11/15 incident, he had never had anythmg psychological or
psychlatrlc care. .

' Pemmner noted that on 7/16/15, he went to the Memor ial Hospxtai emergency OOLH. Earher he had been
crying in a movie attended with his wife and daug,htel At home later on he had some chest pains. Petitioner
indicated they could not ﬁcrure out exactly what was going on in the ER. A eardiolomst was called in.. While
waiting in the emergeney room, Petmoner md1cated he was crymg and did not have control of Ens emotions:

On 8/27/ 15, there were two fires that he and his ¢ Crew worked One of them was about dmner time, 5 00-
6:00 p.m. They arrived at the scene at the same time as another rig. He directed hlS firefighter to pull a hose line.
They went in the house and found the fire and started to work on extinguishing it. After working inside the
building, he apparently became hot and was overcome. He indicated he was told he eoliapsed in the front yard.
He received medical treatment at the scene and then by an ambulance crew that took him to the ER. When he
was being cared for by the paramedics, he was very nervous and shaking and did not know what was ‘going on
with him. He was also crying maybe just because of his nerves being totally shot Petltioner noted that he had
had episodes of unexpiamed crying between 4/11/15 and 8/27/15.

On 8/27/ 15 he was transported to Memorial Medlcai Center. After he sat in the WaltmGr room for two
hours, the ER doctor gave him a bag of fluids for dehydration, She said he appalently suffered a heat episode.
He was sent home to rest. Petitioner did not complete his shift on 8/27/15 after being taken to the Memorial

Medical Center ER. In fact, he did not return to work for the City Fire Depértniem in any capacity after that
date. '

After his ER treatment on the 8/27/15 date, he followed up w ith his family doctor, Dr. Vasconcelies She
did a geneiai assessment for the emotions and nerves and eveiythmo and started him on a prescmptmn of
FIuoxetme She thought he needed to see a psychiatrist and set him up to ‘se¢ Dr. Pan. Dr. Pan assessed the
situation. He agreed to continue the Fluoxetine but at an increased amount. He also prescribed Prazosm which
was supposed to help with the dreams. Petitioner indicated that he still takes the Fluoxetine and the Prazosin

every day. He also was prescribed Xanax for anxiety whtch he is to take as needed He stopped seeing Dr. Pan
a year ago or more,

In addltion to seemcr Dr. Pan, he is seemo a psychotherapist Vincent Flamm;m He still ‘sees Dr.

Flammini, having last seen him on 9/17/18. Initially he saw him twice a week and now sees him about once a
month.

With regard to his condition, Petitioner indicated that any situation that he is unfamiliar with such as
being in court could act as a trigger to his condition. He also mentioned hearing sirens on the streets, especially if
they are close. This causes him to flash back to that day. In his personal life, he has become very guarded. He

used to be outgoing. Now he just sits around, and his wxfe does the talking. He indicated he has to be careful of
the TV shows he watches '

Petltioner mdlcated that he did talk to Flammini about his status, whether he wasg retued whether he was
disabled, whether he was on disability. Petitioner indicated that he was not retired. He was an employee with the
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.'_Clty Flre Departrnent as of 5/21/ 17 In attempt;n0 to transfer hrs deferred compensatlon from the Crty account |
' 1nto a personal IRA he was told he was not a separated employee ' ; o '

Early on, maybe in the fall of 2015 or the spnnfT of 2016 he was. offered a llﬂht duty jOb by the Clty Thls'

'was offered by Mark Hart Who Wwas a. chlef of: Dmsron 1:Dr. Pan thouoht thzs W as abad 1dea Subsequently,'.- R
_-__'the Ctty offered a permanent posmon whtch he dld not accept That was 1n November or December of 2017 e

: :_:Before bemo oftered ‘that’ posnton he: satd he' beheved he had heaxd of that posrtion He mdtcated that the IR

_lposmon 1s ﬁlled He assumed that the posrtron the Ctty was'offermo hlm repl esented a new pOSlthn The tttle" o

2 o and’ deserrptron they gave him was for the exact same posrtron in. our department in:our, labor contract that was'f- o

i ._ ':-_"already ﬁlled and there 'was only one posrtron The uruon drd 0bj€C€ to the Crty offermor the posrtlon

_ ._._..;Begmmnﬂ m February of ZOOl he has worked for Butie' '. Fu. leral Home as a pa
B ';ass:stmg on days of erther a v1srtat1on or a ﬁmeral Basrcally, he was meetmc and greettag farmhes and hmnor up -

trme staff member' RIS

_' :cars In approx]mately September of 2015, he. stopped working for them until February of 2018. He mdrcated he S o

stopped workmor for: them because of hzs emotions; and he could not do the job. He could not ‘mieet and

L '."people and talk to them He just could not. handle the stress ‘He. noted that the 3ob can be stressf‘ul Petrtton.el. N
o mdtcated that he returned 1o vsork for the ﬁtneral home on 2/ 18/ 18. Petlttoner 1nd1cated that he ﬁnally got the' _
elearance from Vmcent Flammmr who thought tt would be 0} eat 1f Pettttoner could start gomg back to work:

| ' __He called the funeral home and asked if. hxs 3ob was, strll avallable and they sard it was At some pomt after oomoj- _
o :-back to work at the ﬁmel al home he trled to 00 ﬁlll ttme there The added duttes 1ncluded courrer dutles as well.'

s Wrth regard 1 talktng :to Flammmt in May of 7017 -Pletttroner mdrcated he was not stressed about hrs'_; g
o 'retuement he was str: ssed about his. PTSD Pettttonel did agree that on 8/17/ 17 he told Flammnn that. thrs ismot -

o how I planned 10 retire. In additton to ‘his work at Butler Petrtioner mdicated that he and tus wrfe have a small
--- _anttque second hand busmess at an anthue mall He noted that he buys and sells small glassware . L

_ Pettttonet agreed that as of hrs 25 year anmversary wrth the ﬁre department Apnl 16 2015 he made'
' '-$92 924 34 annually Pettttoner noted that in addttlon 1o the base. salary there are’ addlttons that can add 10 that -
"ﬁbase thh regard to- his status wrth the Ctty, Petttroner 1nd1cated he thoucht he was separated because aﬁer he - _
_recewed the duty dtsab;hty pensmn ‘the Clty promoted and 1eplaced employees n hrs place Pettttoner mdtcated '.

.he was told by deferred comp that he had to be a separated employee whtch he was not Fa e

Gary Self has been wrth the Sprmtrﬁeld Ftre Depar tment for 18 1/z years He has been pre51dent of the o

'-'1oeal union for three years In December of 2017 he learned about a _}Ob offer to Petmoner by a call from
-Petltloner S attorney 8 ofﬁce He mdtcated that he reyv 1ewed the jOb descrtptlon and felt that it was not a L job that
was eurrently or had been a position wrth the- Sprmoﬁeld Fire Department He unmedlately filed gnevances over
the non-bargamm0 and demanded to baroam with the City." The grievance process went through three steps and
there Was no- resolutton Therefore the’ union’ ﬁled for arbltratron and arbrtrauon is’ currently set aside pendmg
this hearmg The p051t1on is unftlled as of today and no 1on0er exists.” The job offer mdlcated there were' no
ﬁreﬁohtm0 duttes as51gned with' the posrtton Self- noted there ‘were two rnstances Where mdtvrduals from
'_Dzvrs1on 11, whrch is fire safety, _have been called mto actton Dmsron s the same dmsron in Whlch thls job

otTered to Petlttoner is. One was when there Was an’ expiosron at the power plant The other was when the .
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that the union has instructed its attomey not to file for arbitration in this case due to the fact that the job offer
was rescinded. The grlevance process was concluded but the next step has not been taken

 Jane Talbott is mamed to Petmonel She md1cated that she noticed a chancve in her husband aﬁer the
4/11/15 incident. She went to the station house after the meldent and neted that Petitionér was ws:bly shaken up.
He 1nd1cated that he had just had the worst call he has ever seen involvi ing a little girl. When he came horne the
niext morning, he went to bed and crled all day At that point, he did not know if the Little girt had survwed She
indicated that Petitioner was worried about the girl and her future. Mrs. Talbott did indicate that the little girl
did survive and that she is a healthy young lady now. Mrs. Talbott indicated that Petlttonel had a lot of trouble
sleeping and that it involved nightmares. Petitioner became very w1thd1awn and did not want to do a lot. He
became aoltated very easily. He tried to cover evervthmg, up. At the time of the first visit with the psyeinatrist
Petltloner was shaking and near tears in the waiting room and throughout the entire eppomtment Mrs. Talbott
mdicated that they do not attend a lot of functlons She mdacated Pet;t1one1 cannot be in larﬂe gloups of peopke

Jeph Bassett is a Deputy Division Ch}ef of Operations with the SprmOﬁeld Ftre Department He has been
in that position about six months. Prior to that for about three years he was Deputy Division Chief of Technical
Services. Before that he was Deputy Division Chief of Fire Safety for about a year. With regard to the job
description and position offered to Petitioner, Petitioner would not be’ exposed to any emergency situations
whiether it be fires or accidents or emergency situations such as a heart attack. - He would be. doing fire
inspections: The Division II fire safety has four functions, which are plan review, fire mspeet1ons, fire
investigations and public education. The job description for Petitioner was written to address fire inSpections and
public education. A fire inspector goes out and looks for code violations and code enforcement within
buildings.  Investigators go to a fire scene to figure out the origin. Going to a fire scene was not in the job
descmptlon for Petitloner ‘The duties in the job deseriptton are all duties done by. ﬁremen The prev1ously noted
figure of $92, 924.34 would have been the same for this job descmpt;on There is the- potenttal fo make more
with certain education requirements. With regard to Mayor Edwards moving three mspeetors back to operations,
this was unusual and a grievance was filed. It did not go to arbltratton There was an election and a new mayor
remstated the three back into fire safety. Edwards was an interim mayor for a few rnonths Dmsmn I works out
of the Mumelpal Center West on the third floor, where most of the people are. There i is also on the south side of
town out by the umveisity something called the Ch;ldren s Safety Village. where the senior pubhc education
officer works. There would be a uniform for the position, the same as what EVETyOne wears. With the advent of
cell phones radios are not really used as much anymore. Fire safetv is asszoned to channel four Opetatzons calls
are not dlspatched over that channel. If a fire investigation was requested, that would come over that channel.
Where there is an exttemely large incident like the powe1 plant cxpiosaon, someone from Division II could be

called into an operatlonat mode. The mspecto:s in Dmsmn IT have a JOb descrtptlon Whlch is dtt‘ferent than that
gwen to Petltioner :

Stephame Barton was employed by the Clty of Spruwﬁeld as a labor relations manaoer She was
previously employed in the Attorney General’s office in the Employment and Lab01 Law Bureau. She was also at
the Department of Corrections as the Chief of Labor Relattons Then she became Deputy General Counsel over
CMS labor relations, respon51ble for the negotxatlon of all state contracts. Wlth the City of Sprmgﬁeld she was
“involved with negonatmc contracts including the Collective Baroamm(r Acreement with ﬁrehcrhters There were
23 Coliectwe Baroammg Acreements at the C1ty of Sprmcrﬁeld Last December she was farmhar with the jOb that
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_'was offered to Petrtroner She talked wrth the now retrred tne chtef at that ttme Contraot negotlattons were' sttll

' "'ongomo then She is: fanultar wrth the guevances ﬁled by the union. The pos:tton bemg created for Pettttoner: R
‘was-run by her from a: colleettve bargammg standpomt ‘She: gave her opnnon that it'is pulely a manaoement rloht' 3
-'to c1eate posrttons The C1ty had the rtght to create a posmon et en’ under the llimms Labor Relatlons Aet The__
_'.Umon 100k the pOSrtlon that it was collecttve bargamm0 work and the City thouoht the 0pp051te Ms Barton _

i v mdrcated that the umon could start the precess of ﬁlmU a petltlon The Ctty had no obhcratton 1o: bargam overit '
S untrl the Labor Relatlons Board had certtﬁed that. thls was a posmon under the Collectwe Bargammg Agreement S
. -.-Nothmg was e&er ﬂled wrth the Illmors Labor Relattons Board Onee Pet1ttoner had refused the _]ob the Crty S

' ook the posrﬂon that they were no lonoer ﬁllmcr the p051t10n Thrs was the: manacement ucht 1o ﬁll or not to fill. o

i Her pos;tlon was that it was’ then 4 moot. 1ssue once Pettttoner re}ected the Job offer Her understandmg was that' o

'3'the Clty created the posrtton to speelﬁcally aceommodate Petrttonel wrth Whatevel accommodatlons he needed i

' The C1ty pos1t10n was that the demand to batgam was moot because the Petttroner 1ejected the posnton and there' o

- _' was nothmo to bargam ovet

o The recm ds from Vmeent Flammmr (PXQ) reﬂeet that Petattoner was fn st seen on 7/02/ 15 The h]story' e
- _was that Petttlonet reported feelmg a numbel of symptoms smce Aprtl 2015 aﬁer a ﬁreﬁghter call when’ he' _
B encountered a youno gtrl who had been attacked by a dog. Petrtroner reported numerous ﬂashbacks nlghtrneu es, .

: :and other mtrusrve thoughts about the call as: well. as othe1 calls, ﬁom his career that' had ot aﬁ'ec:ted h1m unt;l o
:aﬁei this Aprri ea]I Petitioner reperted wrthdrawal mcreased nrrtabilrty, and decreased ﬁustratton tolerance -
Fiammmt s dlaonosm was, PTSD modetate tendmﬂ tow ard severe. At the ttme of the. next visit on 7/15/ 15, the_ o

o agteement was “that Flammml would call Dr Vasconcelles, Pettttoner s per sonal physrc n, to prescrtbe-
medtcatton As of 7/29/ 15 Flammlm noted that Petrttoner s PTSD was neﬂatnely mtpactmﬁ all areas of his life.
F‘lamrmm contmued 10 see Petrttoner on approxunately onoe a week basrs at least: through the end of the year As' '
of 11/16/ 15 Flammmr reported that Petlttonet 'S svmptoms were. lessemno but’ that he was stlll easrly tnggered by
-novel s:tuatlons As of 2/18/16, Flarmmm dld not think it made sense for Pettttonez to retum 1o work since he
‘was stlll hatmg swmﬁcant anxtety regatdmo his abthty to perform duttno a crisis and was. h:avm':t anxlety
regardmg the. i'iSk of: 1ntense PTSD symptoms returnmc ' Petittonet mdrcated he was leamng more toward
retiring versus the I'iSk of returmng to work and experlencmcr srgmﬁcant PTSD agam As of 5/25/17 Flamrmm
-mdtcated that Petrtroner had 51gn1ﬁcantly more stress related to leoal 1ssues re PTSD and retlrement At the next
visit ‘on 8/ 17/17, FIamrnml again noted stress related to Ieoal rssues e PTSD and retlrement At that visit,
Pentloner mdtcated o Flammtm that he" had an okay summet m whreh he drd some lawn work at home and
helped out. a few frtends i the nelchborhood Petrtroner mdtcated thrs is not how l planned to retlre (PX9)

Pet1t1oner ﬁrst saw Dr Pan on 9/ 15/ 15 on refenal from Dr Vasconcelies At that ttme Petltroner
deser tbed the mezdent occurting on 4/ 11/ 15 and how 1t affected him He 1nd1eated 10 Dr Pan that he had been
seging Vmcent Flammini. Petitioner continued to see Dr. Pan untrl Aucrust 15, 2017. As of 3/ 17/16, Dr. Pan
mdteated that his reeornmendatlon was that Petitioner not return to active duty for the fire department On
3/02/17, Petitioner reported to Dr. Pan that he was receiving temporary total drsablhty benefits. There were still
some issues to be worked out and he was frustrated by the lack of resolution. He was also frustrated that on
TTD he could not work otherw ise. Dr. Pan’s 1mpress:0n was that Petltioner was domg well at that time. In'a
letter dated 3/02/17, Dr. Pan mdlcated that Pet1tror1er had made a great deal of i unpro» ement and was reasonably
stable wrth treatment. Tt rematned the doctor s optmon that Petltioner should not return to. work’ as a ﬁreﬁghter
He felt that the mabthty to return to ﬁJll duttes asa ﬁreﬁchter or in emeroency medreal s1tuatlons was mdeﬁmte o
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(PX7). Dr. Pan indicated in a letter to Petitioner’s attorney dated 8/02/18 that he dld not feel Petitioner should
accept the position as fire mspector/pubhe educator because being on the scene and investigating fires would
likely trigger his PTSD. He did note that Petitioner would be able to perform any of the posmons listed on pages
8 and 9 of the labor market survey from Elizabeth Skyles (PXS):

Dr Vaseonceﬂes in response to an mqmry from Petatloner s attorne) indtcated that on perusmo the job
deseriptlon she did not see any that would be a clear concern for flaring up Petitioner’s PTSD She went on to
indicate that she had not specifically reviewed them with the patient to see if he would foresee a problem. The

doctor noted that Petitioner was physically capable of doing the jobs, but that it would depend upon his ability to
emotzonally handle the sﬁuattons (Jomt Exhibit 1).

-~ Petitioner was seen for an mdependent medical evaluation by Dr. Ganellen on 11/28/ 16 Dr. Ganellen
reviewed medical records and talked with Petitioner. His opinion was that Petitioner should not return to work as
a ﬁreﬁcrhter He thought it would be a good idea for Petitioner to resume involvement in the work force and
would encourage Petitioner’s efforts to pursue a new career (RX1). With respect to Petitionet’s claim for
dlsabﬂlty pension benefits, he was evaluated by Dr. Teny Killian on 5/17/ 17. Dr. Kilhan talked to Petitioner and
reviewed medical records. He essenhaﬂy agreed with Dr. Pan and Dr. Ganellen He indicated that Petitioner
should be considered permanently disabled from his position as a ﬁreﬁﬁhter (PX12}.

Petitioner was evaluated by Elizabeth Skyles, a vocational consultant, in 2017. Her initial report with
regard to her evaluation of Petitioner was dated 7/31/17. She felt that Petitioner was employable and that
positions were available for him (RX2). Elizabeth Skyles also performed a labor market survey and issued a

report dated 8/23/17. In the course of that evaluation, Petitioner indicated that he likely would have the
~ opportunity to return to work at the funeral hiome. He indicated that it was to be determined whether he would
be able to work full time there, which would depend upon how much work they had. Petitioner adwsed that this
definitely could be a 0ood possibility and option for him. Petitioner also reported to Elizabeth Skyles that he had
independently built three houses for himself, He further reported that he bought, renovated, repaited and flipped
homies as well, He noted that he had acted as a general contractor and performed all the labor. He did state that
he had subcontracted out some plumbmg and sewer work (RX3)

CONCLUSIO\ES

Issue (G): What were Petitioner's earnings?

In addition to the testimony about earnings, Respondent offered into evidence wage records which
include Petitioner’s actual carnings from the Fire Department in the 52 weeks preceding the accident (RX9). In
addition, Petmoner entered into evidence wage records which include Petitioner’s actual earnings from Butler
Funerai Home in the 52 weeks precedmg the aee1dent (PX14).

For the Fire Department Petitioner’s average pay period was 100 hours and forty eight minutes, or 100.8
hours every two weeks. 100.8 + 2 = 50.4 hours per week. From 4/11/14 through 2/28/15, 46 2/7 weeks,

Petitioner earned $34 3939 per hour. From 3/1/15 through 4/10/15, 5 6/7 weeks, Petitioner earned $34.9098 per
hour. :
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. $34 3939 X 50 4 hours pet week $l 733. 45 X 46 27 weeks —:" 0;232 85 $34 9098 X 50 4 hours per

_ _".Week = Sl 759.45. x5, 857 %10, 305.12.- Therefoze Pettttoner s sttatoht time: eammgs in the 52 weeks
- _-preeedtnOr the ac<:1dent were $90 537 97 ' SORTENS AP o '

_ T he Arb1ttator notes that Pettttoner eamed overttme i l3 of the 26 pay penods precedmg the acetdent _
.';':_In 9 of the pay pertods mcludmg one aﬁer the pay increase, Pet1t1oner worked 12.0 hours In the other pay

- }_penods he worked 1 0 8. 0 4.0, and 12 s hours of overttme for a total of 255 hours for these pertods However a
VL ":_there is no ev;dence in the record Wthh addresses. W hether the overtune was, mandatory, therefore the Arbttrator o
o _'declmes to mclude these hours m the waoe calculatton o R w Doy '

Thete 1s also evxdence in- the reemd tneludtno both parttes ques’nonmU of Pettttonet to- estabhsh that' B
iy durmg the 52 weeks prior to the accrdent Petmonet had concurrent employment with’ Butler Funeral Home -

- .__--Petttroner s exhibit | 14, which was admttted wnhout ob}eenon shows Petlttoner earned $6 880 50 in the 52 .

‘weeks precedmg the accrdent The A}bltrator ﬁnds that these earmnos should be mcluded m the waoe.- o
.'__calculatton : IR e : Sl

_ Therefote the Arbttrator ﬁnds that in the 52 weeks precedmo the accndent Petrttoner earne:d $90 537 97 .
.-+$688050 $9741847foranAW\N0f187343 e R : s - : '

: -'Issue gK! What temporary benefits are in dlspute" '

R Petltloner clatms entltlement to TTD frorn 1/6, 18 tlnough 2/ 1 l/ 18 (5 217 weeks) Thts is the oniy penod- _
g the patttes placed in dlspute at the. hearmv Pettttonet Tast worked- for Respondent on 8/27/15 Petltloner B |

g '- stopped working for Butler Funeral Home in Septembe1 of 2015 and dtd not return 1o work for them until .

- 2/18/18. There is no ev1denee in the record to establish Petttroner perfoxmed any work within the: period for
'Wthh TTD is elatmed The Arbitl ator therefore coneludes Pet}HODEl is entrtled to the clatmed 5 2/7 weeks of |

Respondent shall pay Petrttoner temporary totaE dlS&blllEy beneﬁts of Sl 248 95/week for. 5 2/7 weeks =

cornmenelng 1/6/18 throuoh 2/ 1 l/ 18, as prowded in Sectron S(b) of the Aet Respondent shall be gwen a eredtt _

'for ternp01ary total dtsabthty ‘oeneﬁts that have been paid for the 5 7/7 weeks aw arded herem o

_ The Arbttrator notes that Respondent seeks credit for TTD beneﬁts pald ﬁom 5/28/ 17 through 1/’5/ 18
becatise in an ofﬁce v1s1ts w1th his psyc‘nolocnst on 5f27/ 17 Mr. Flarnmtm notes [s}tgmﬁeantly more stress ;
'related to legal 1ssues re PTSD atid retirement,’ and on 8/17/19 he notes stress related to legal 1ssuers PTSD
and retirement,” Petlttoner eons;dered lumself renred as of 5/77/17 The totahty of the evidence in the record
elearly mdtcates that Petittoner had not retired. on 5’27/ 17. In fact Pettttoner had apphed for a hne of duty
dzsablhty pension frorn the Ftreﬁghters Penszon Board but did. not have a heari ing before that Board until
6/30/17. He was there after awarded the line of duty d;sabthty pension effective as of 6/30/17. T here i$
absolutely no question Respondent is not entztled to any credtt for beneﬁts pard durmo the perlod of 5/28/17
through 6/29/ 1 7 : :

- With respect to the perlod of 6/30/ 17 through 1/5/ 18 ﬁreﬁghters hne of duty pensmns are awarded
pursuant to 40 ILCS 5/4 llO et seq Specrﬁcally, 40 lLCS 5/4- 1142 deals with reductton in lme of duty
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disability benefits for corresponding benefits payable under the Workers” Compensation Act. Section 5/4-114.2
provides, in pertment part: '

(a) Whenever a person is entitled to a disability or surv ivor’s beneﬁt under this
Article and to benefits under the Workers’ Compensation Act [820 ILCS 305/1 et
seq.] or the Workers’ Occupat:onal Diseases Act {820 1LCS 310/1 et seq] for the
same injury or disease, the benefits payable under this Article shall be reduced by
an amount computed in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section. There shall
be no reduction, however, for any of the following: payments for medical, surgical
and hospital services, non-medical remedial care and treatment rendered in
accordance with a religious method of healing 1ecogmzed by the laws of this State
and for artificial appliances; payments made for scheduled losses for the loss of or
permanent and complete or permanent and partial loss of the use of any bodily
member or the body taken as a whole under subdivision (d)2 or subsection (e) of
Section 8 of the Workers” Compensation Act [820 ILCS 305/8] or Section 7 of
the Workers® Occupational Diseases Act [820 ILCS 310/7]; payrhents made for
statutorily prescribed losses under subdivision (d)2 of Section 8 of the Workers’

Compensation Act [820 ILCS 305/8] or Section 7 of the Workers’ Occupational
Diseases Act [820 ILCS 310/7]; and that portion of the payments which is utilized
to pay attorneys” fees and the costs of securing the workers’ compensation benefits
under either the Workers® Compensation Act {820 ILCS 305/1

_ 40 ILCS 5/4-114.2(a). Clearly this prov ision does not contemplate elimination of obhcranon to pay TTD
benefits otherwise payable based on the award of a line of duty disability pensaon

Respondent next aiieges that when Petmonm failed to accept a position offered by Respondent on
12/13/17 which was allegedly “within Petitioner’s restrictions™ he refused the offer and had voluntarily removed
himself from the work force. The Arbitrator disagrees. No physician ever cleared Petitioner to return to work in
that position. Dr. Vasconcelles, in response to any inquiry of 7/23/18, wrote:

..I have been managing Robert's medications for his PTSD. It is under good
control as long as he is not exposed to any triggers that can exacerbate his PTSD
symptoms. Unfortunately, that seems to be any activities that remind him of his
job as a fireman and EMT. On perusing the jobs. deserlptlons enclosed, { do not
see any that would be a clear concern for flaring his PTSD but I have not
spe01ﬁcaﬂy reviewed them with the patient to see if he foresees any concerns. He
is physically capable of doing any of these positions but it will depend on whether
he can emotionally handle the rigors. I am not equlpped as a primary care doctor
to render a decision in thiS regard...

(JX 1). The Arbitrator does not beheve this to be an opm1on that Petitioner was capable of returning to work in
one or more of the offered positions. Instead, it is a fairly clear statement that the doctor is not qualified to

render an opinion of the matter. Further, the statement was not rendered until many months after the last
requested payment of TTD.
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ey Respondent does not cIalm credrt for any’ beneﬁts pard durmg the :equested beneﬁt perzod of 5 2/7 'weeks:_ 5
"_'_from1/6/18throu0h2/11/18 BN S D : e o

Based apon the foregomc the Arb;tratm conciudes Respondent 15 not entrtled to the credrt ciarmed

'Issue ;L) What 1s the nature a’nd e'(tent of the m;ury" T

Pursuant to §8 lb of the Act permanent part1a1 drsabrht\ rrom mjuraes Eh’it occur atter September L 201 i -_ '-

S 'as to be establlshed usmg thc followmo crlterra (1) the reported ievel of 1mpalrment pursuant to subsectlon (a) of RS

:njury, (w) the employee s tuture earnmc’ capacm and (v) evrdence of d1sabrl1t} corroborated by the treatmc'.. .
““miedical records. 820 ILCS 305/8. Eb “The Act. prowdes that \‘o srnale enumerated factor shall be the sote o

.'determmant of dlsabillty 820 ILCS 305/8 1b(b) \}

_ With 1egard to subseetion (1) of \8 1b(b) the A:b:tmtor notes that nuthel pam submitted an 1mpazrment =
o ratme The Arb;tra’sor thexefore gwes no wewht to thlS faetor R A L

thh regard 1o subsect:on (11) of §8 lb(b) tae oceupatlon of the employee the Arbltrator notes Petltioner; :

o .'was a f' reﬁghter and descnbed his _]()b activities in great deal; The Petmone: testaﬁed that he is unable to pe1 form

s _|0b activities. grven the. 1evei of psychologlcai 1mpaument he’ stlll feels to date. His symptoms and treatment -
L thereof contmue throuoh the date ot trral The Arbltrator theretore an es g1 earer we;ght to thrs factor il _'

':.-Wlth ;egard to SUbSBCtiGﬂ (m) of §8 lb(b) tae Arbm at01 notes that Penuone;_wes 53 years olcl as of the:

:--psychologlcai trauma sustamed m thiS mgury The Arbmator thererore glves greafer werght to thrs faetor

Wlth recard to sabsectlon (lv) of §8 1b(b) Petltloner 5 f'utore eammos capacny, the Arbrtrator notes.

- :Petmoner 18 unable 10 work in any eme} gency ﬁeid due to’ hlS psychoioﬂlcai tng ers from the’ trauma of the

i mcrdent The emcrgeney service ﬁeld was his ehosen oceupatlon and. prlmary S0UICe. of income to provrde for -
. "hunself and his famﬂy, that ﬁeld as a whole 1s no lonoe1 awariabie to Petrtloner The Arbrtrator theaefore vaves
: greater we:oht to thrs factor ' - : e :

thh regard to subsectlon (v) of §8 lb(b) evzdenee of d:sabrhty corroborated by the treannc medlcai
.1ecords the Arbitrator notes that Pet:troner test:ﬁed to’ the onﬂome psychologlcal problems he s, endurmg

_ Respondent did not oft‘er any evrdenee or testzrnony to refute the testamonv of Petrtroner or did Respondent |

“offer the testrmony of . any expert. to refute the Petlttoner 5 condxt;on The Arbitr ator ﬁnds the Petmoner to have

_test;ﬁed credrbiy and the medical 1ecords to corroborate his medrcal condrtlon Petltioner entcred into evxdence

“the report of Dr. Pan, who mdlcated that Petitioner 1 is cert1ﬁed as pelmanentiy dlsabied from ﬁreﬁOhter sen ice as
a result of cumulatlvc effects of acts of duty as a ﬁreﬁghtm (PX 7). Also submitted into ev1dence are the med1ca1

records of Dr Pan whrch mdicate a hlstory of medleal treatment and exams gwen by Dr. Pan to Petitroner : '

All of thc treatmg medlcal records entered mto ev 1dence wrthout objectron from Respondent corroborate
the symptoms ‘and the zmpact on Petrtroner in his personal life. The records of the treaters in this case indicate the
: protracted duratlon of recovery, if thele is even any reeovery to be had in thls matter Because the medrca]
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records and ewdence taken as'a whole corroborate the Petitionet’s complamts the Arbltrator therefore gives
greater welght to th1s factor.

Based on the above factors, and the record taken as a whole, the Arbitrator imds that Pet;txoner sustained

'permanent parttal dlsab:hty to the extent of 50% loss of use of the person as a who!e pmsuant to §8(d)’> of the
Act. :
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